
Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

July 8, 2024 
 

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, July 8, 2024 to transact business.  Mr. Jordan called the 

meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  Gary Jordan, Guy Bainum and Bari 

Henning answered the roll call.  Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning 

Administrator Brian Tatman, Thad Bauer, Charlie Maklem, Jody Wilson, Dylan Arnett, and Ed Boll.  

 

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the minutes of the June 24, 2024 regular meeting.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

 

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation 

status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to 

actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.   

 

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the attached bills.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas. 

 

Mr. Bauer asked about the Clear Mountain Energy solar project.  Mr. Jordan said the Trustees’ position was no solar projects 

50 mega watts or greater were permitted in the Township, but the Clear Mountain project was grandfathered in before state 

legislation was enacted establishing the process for addressing large solar projects.  Mr. Jordan said he believed the Township 

had done everything it could to stop large solar projects.  He said the Township was not against the use of residential solar or 

solar at commercial businesses such as how it was utilized at the Cincinnati Zoo parking lot.  Mr. Bauer said he believed the 

Clear Mountain project was to bring in $900,000 a year across the County.  He said that seemed positive and may help reduce 

his property taxes.  Mr. Henning said that estimate was spread across the County and Williamsburg Township’s portion 

would be small.  Mr. Henning said that seems like a lot but not in comparison to what 1000 acres could generate if developed 

commercially.  Mr. Bauer indicated he lived in Stonelick Township but was interested in understanding the overall impact of 

solar farms.  He stated this might be our only chance to generate this solar revenue.  Mr. Henning said that possible industry 

would be better and you cannot predict the future but commercial development is happening in this corridor.  Mr. Maklem 

said he believed the Trustees were spot on.  He said the Purina plant land generated minimal tax revenue as agriculture but as 

a commercial development is providing enough revenue to build a new elementary school.  Mr. Maklem said in his personal 

opinion the growth is coming.  Mr. Bauer said the Clear Mountain project affected a small amount of acreage in the County 

overall.  Mr. Maklem said that acreage is most ideal for commercial/industrial growth.  Mr. Jordan said the rich Townships 

do not generate their revenue with solar farms.  He indicated the Route 32 corridor is optimal for commercial growth.  He 

said Purina will generate jobs versus no jobs at a solar farm.  Mr. Bauer asked about how someone like Purina chooses a site.  

Mr. Henning said these types of companies are looking for a shovel ready site.  Mr. Jordan stated potential sites have to be 

marketed with a vision.  Mr. Bainum suggested Mr. Bauer go to the Clermont County Commissioners for more information.  

Mr. Jordan said being in the East Fork Water Shed we also do not know what the residual effects of a solar farm might be.  

Mr. Henning said the Trustees are not totally against solar just focused on better tax base revenue.  Mr. Henning said the 

Ohio Power Siting Board must still approve the Clear Mountain Project.  Mr. Bauer indicated he was glad to see the 

Trustees’ position was based on economics and not political.  Mr. Jordan said there were no political decisions with these 

Trustees just focus on the future of Williamsburg Township.  It was noted that there is a local hearing on the Clear Mountain 

Energy project August 1st at 5:00 p.m. at the Williamsburg High School.  Mr. Boll stated there was a hearing in Columbus as 

well.  Mr. Lefferson confirmed the hearing in Columbus was September 10, 2024 at 10 a.m.  Mr. Lefferson said he may 

attend one of the meetings.  He also stated he is working on a financial analysis comparing land used as a solar farm versus 

other development.  

 

Zoning Report 

Mr. Tatman said a hearing was scheduled with the judge July 15th at 1:00 p.m.regarding the airsoft gun park operating in the 

Township.  Mr. Tatman stated in regard to Clear Mountain Food Park the judge granted Summary Judgment in favor of the 

Township meaning the Park must abide by the Township Noise Resolution.  Mr. Tatman said there would be a July 9 th 

kickoff meeting with Cloud Permit on the zoning permit software.  He indicated Scott Gafvert of Clermont County Economic 

Development had contacted him about a zoning change to industrial for the property recently purchased by the CIC.  Mr. 

Jordan said the Trustees received the Temporary Restraining Order on operations of the airsoft gun park.  Mr. Jordan asked 

about a liquor permit request received recently regarding Dollar General.  Mr. Tatman said he informed the Liquor Control 

Board the property was located in the Village of Williamsburg not the Township.  Mr. Jordan complimented Mr. Tatman on 

mowing the nuisance property.  Mr. Bainum provided Mr. Tatman information on some potential vehicle violations in the 

Township. 

 

Cemetery and Maintenance Report 

Mr. Tatman said he was exploring next steps for the maintenance building.  Mr. Jordan, Mr. Tatman, and Mr. Lefferson met 

at the Concord Cemetery to discuss possible plans for a small pavilion to be built at the site.  Mr. Bainum asked if we were 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

July 8, 2024 
looking at seating.  Mr. Tatman said no, none built in.  Mr. Jordan said we would like to work with Grant Vocational School 

for the build and that it would be a great opportunity for the community.  Mr. Tatman presented a preliminary design.  He 

stated paving on Hennings Mill Road was complete.  He also indicated mowing along the roads was complete.  Mr. Tatman 

said he would place another load of gravel where needed on Musgrove Road.  He stated he was finishing up the no parking 

signs on Afton Drive.  Mr. Jordan said when it becomes necessary for the Township to mow a nuisance property we should 

have a minimum charge.  Mr. Tatman said we charge within the limits established by Ohio Revised Code.  Mr. Bainum 

requested the speed monitoring sign on Hennings Mill Road.  Mr. Henning said he thought there might still be a men 

working sign on Musgrove Road.  Mr. Tatman said he was aware of the sign and would pick it up. 

 

Emergency Services Report 

Mr. Jordan informed the group that Chief McCarthy was on vacation.  Mr. Jordan read the Chief’s written report.  There were 

48 fire calls and 97 EMS calls for the month of June.  The Emergency Services team had two recent trainings: 1) vehicle 

extrication training with Howell Rescue using the Department’s new Genesis battery power tools, 2) vehicle fire training. 

 

Mr. Lefferson indicated that the Township is going to receive a $150,000 grant from the One-Time Strategic Community 

Investment Fund from the State of Ohio.  We are grateful for the work of State Senator Terry Johnson and his office in 

securing this funding.  Mr. Lefferson said we had requested $400,000 for new siding, roof, parking lot, bay repair, and garage 

doors for the Emergency Services Building.  While we did not receive the full amount requested, we understand that it is a 

competitive process with limited funds available.  The Trustees thanked Fiscal Officer Lefferson and Chief McCarthy for 

their efforts in obtaining this grant. 

               

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 7:57 p.m.  Mr. Henning second.  All 

yeas. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Fiscal Officer     Chairperson    


